
 
General Business                                      Lower Saucon Township                                           December 19, 2007 
& Developer                                                      Council Minutes                                                              7:00 P.M. 
 
 
I. OPENING 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 
was called to order on Wednesday, December 19, 2007 at 7:36 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, 
Bethlehem, PA, with Mr. Glenn Kern, Council President, presiding.    

   
 ROLL CALL:  Present – Glenn Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, 

Sandra Yerger and Ron Horiszny, Council Members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Assistant 
Township Manager, Leslie Huhn, Brien Kocher, Township Engineer; Township Solicitor, Linc Treadwell; 
Township Planner, Rick Tralies and Jr. Council Member, Georgiana Torella.   

     
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 
 

Mr. Kern said Council met in Executive Session prior to this meeting to  
discuss personnel issues and potential acquisition of property. 

  
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 Mr. Kern said for citizen agenda items – Council operates under Robert’s Rules.  What that means is during 

agenda items, Council will talk amongst themselves and amongst staff and the interested parties.  At the 
conclusion of that, we open it up to the public for public comment.  There is an opportunity for non-agenda 
items at the end of the meeting to discuss whatever your business might be.  We do have a microphone and 
there are microphones up at the table. There is a sign-in sheet in the back of the room.  Please print your 
name and address and email address.  It is very helpful in transcribing the minutes.  For those who want to 
receive emailed agendas, please give your email address to Diane, Leslie, or Jack or call the Township 
office.  Please state your name and address.  If you can’t hear, please let us know.  Mr. Kern asked if 
anything was taken off the agenda this evening?  Mr. Cahalan said no. 

   
III. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

  
A. ZONING HEARING BOARD VARIANCE – MIKE JONES – 2696 WASSERGASS 

ROAD – REQUEST VARIANCE OF IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE TO 
CONSTRUCT DWELLING 

 
Mr. Kern said the applicant is proposing to extend the driveway to a flat and clear area of site to 
construct a new dwelling and allow for future impervious surfaces for future accessory structures. 

 
Present – Don Lynch, Engineer and Mike Jones, applicant.  Mr. Lynch said the future accessory 
structures have been removed from this application due to comments made at the last Council 
meeting.  They revised their statement requesting the variance to remove the additional impervious 
area for future accessory structures and submitted a copy to the Council.  One thing that did change 
on the plan was the size of the dwelling.  They had the wrong dimensions on there so the actual 
dimension are 30 x 60, and due to that change, Chris Garges recommended it be brought back to 
Council before proceeding to the Zoning Hearing Board.  It’s a 260 foot difference from the 
original. 

 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 2 of 14 

Mrs. Yerger said the revised driveway went from 1350 to 1800.  Mr. Cahalan said according to 
Chris’s calculations you added an additional 485 feet to the driveway.  Mr. Lynch said that’s not 
intentional.  The change in the house size would not increase the driveway size.  Mr. Maxfield said 
what is the actual driveway?  Mrs. Yerger said you’re also adding a porch.  Mr. Lynch said it was 
shown previously, however, the impervious area for that was not added to the footprint calculation 
on that previous sheet.  They were going to throw that into the 1800.  That number shouldn’t have 
changed since the last time.  There’s no intention of changing the driveway square footage.  Mr. 
Kern said on the application it says 1350 square feet, is that accurate?  Mr. Lynch said that is 
accurate.  The 1350 was the proposed driveway.  Mr. Maxfield said the width hasn’t changed?  Mr. 
Lynch said no, that hasn’t changed.  The driveway is 10 feet wide.  Mrs. Yerger said what is the 
amount of relief you are asking for?  Mr. Lynch said just the point we are looking for to allow .33 
acres of impervious on the site.  The relief is in the impervious ratio.  The maximum allowable is .2 
and we are asking for .33, roughly 13%, which is the calculated buildable site, as before they were 
asking for 15%.  Attorney Treadwell said basically they went from 15% to 13% increase, so they 
came down 2%.  Mr. Maxfield said the porch wasn’t included before.  Mr. Jones said it was 
miscommunication and the numbers weren’t correct.  Mrs. Yerger said when you gave Mr. Lynch 
the number of 1540 square feet, it was Mr. Jones error.  He said correct.  Mrs. deLeon said we 
should take no action and let the Zoning Hearing Board decide. 

 
Council took no action. 

 
B. CREEKSIDE MARKETPLACE - ROUTE 412 – RELEASE OF SECURITY 
 

Mr. Kern said the applicant has requested to be released from the maintenance agreement for the 
above-referenced project.  The Township Engineer has re-inspected the punch items and is 
recommending a security reduction, but also recommending that Council reject the request to end 
the maintenance period per the staff recommendation. 

 
Mr. Kocher said Creekside finished the two remaining items on the punch list so they are due the 
security release.  You have to retain security in the amount of $2,838 to cover Boucher & James 
items, but that has to wait until spring, so they have asked that maintenance end so you have to 
officially reject that request.  Attorney Treadwell said you have to do two motions, the first is 
release the security that HEA has approved and the second is to reject the release of the things that 
Boucher & James has not approved yet. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to release the security of $1,375 per HEA’s recommendation. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved to reject the request to end maintenance and authorize a maintenance security 
reduction for 12/19/07 Council meeting which recommends the approval be subject to a 
security improvement of $2,830 as recommended by Boucher & James, letter of November 14, 
2007 letter and shall remain in full force and effect until project completion or the expiration 
date of the existing security improvement to the satisfaction of the township solicitor and the 
owner shall pay any outstanding appeal account invoices owed to the Township. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 3 of 14 

V. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. 2008 BUDGET – FINAL ADOPTION 
 

Mr. Kern said the 2008 final budget has been prepared and advertised for final adoption.  Prior to 
budget adoption, Council will need to approve resolution 64-2007 based on prior discussions and 
per motions at previous meetings to increase/decrease budget line items. 

 
LOWER SAUCON TOWNSHIP 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
 RESOLUTION #64-2007 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF MONIES FROM ONE 
TOWNSHIP FUND TO ANOTHER PRIOR TO THE ADOPTION OF THE 2008 FINAL 

BUDGET 
 

       FROM                                          TO 
  Amount Account No. Account Name Account No.        Account Name  
$       5,000.00   05.400.310  Appraisal Fees 05.493.000       Contingency 
$       5,000.00   05.404.314  Legal 05.493.000 Contingency 
$       2,271.36    01.493.000  Contingency 01.401.120 Manager 
$       1,611.03    01.493.000  Contingency 01.401.121 Asst. Manager 
$       1,466.40    01.493.000  Contingency 01.402.120 Dir. of Finance 
$       2,204.28    01.493.000  Contingency 01.410.120 Police Chief 
$       1,767.48    01.493.000  Contingency 01.414.120 Zoning Officer 
$       1,630.20    01.493.000  Contingency 01.430.120 Dir. of Public Works 
$          678.95    01.493.000  Contingency 01.487.161 Social Security 
$          158.79    01.493.000  Contingency 01.487.168 Medicare 
$     10,000.00   01.493.000  Contingency 01.404.312 Special Counsel 
$       1,750.00   01.493.000  Contingency 01.410.420 General (Police) Ctr. 
                             For Animal Health 

 
SECTION 2. 
The Township Manager is hereby directed to make the necessary transfers to implement this 
Resolution. 
 
RESOLVED AND ENACTED this 19th day of December, 2007. 

 
Mr. Cahalan said resolution 64-2007 contains recommendations to move twelve line item amounts.   

 $5,000 from the appraisal fees account to the contingency.   
 $5,000 from legal to the contingency account.  
  $2,271.36 from contingency to the Manager line item.  
 $1,611.03.  from contingency to the Assistant Manager line item 
 $1,466.40 from contingency to Director of Finance line item.   
 $2,204.28 from contingency to Police Chief line item.   
 $1,767.48 from contingency to Zoning Officer line item.  
 $1,630.20.  from contingency to Director of Public Works line item.   
 Also, from contingency to social security, $678.95.   
 From contingency to Medicare cost of $158.79.   
 Also recommending the amount of $10,000 be moved from contingency to special counsel 

line item. 
 $1,750.00 from contingency to the General Police line item for the center of animal health 

and safety. 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 4 of 14 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of Resolution 64-2007. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  Margie Segaline 
wanted to know what was the $10,000 for the special council line item?  Ms. Gorman stated 
this was for appraisal and legal fees.  Ms. Segaline asked if they allocated any funds to the 
Hellertown Library.  Mr. Cahalan said no action was taken on that.  Mrs. deLeon said the top 
two things, appraisal and legal fees, what account is it coming from?  Mr. Cahalan said from 
the open space fund.  Mrs. deLeon said she had issues with that at the last meeting, as when the 
voters voted for the referendum, it wasn’t explained to her, and when the voters voted for the 
referendum, they assumed the expenses would come out of the open space fund.  She objected 
to that at the last two meetings and will continue to vote against it as it should have been 
explained to the voters.  Mr. Kern said that is your interpretation and he will continue state that 
and in no way was it a misrepresentation and it was as clear as it could possibly be that this is 
how it was going to be handled.  Mrs.. Yerger said Glenn’s interpretation was the same as the 
EAC members.  Mrs. deLeon said she talked to several residents and they were astounded that 
the money would be taken from the General Fund for open space purchases.  Mrs. Yerger said 
it’s not open space purchases.  If they are of the understanding is it’s going to open space 
actual purchase, then they are totally misunderstanding it.  Mr. Kern said it would be like a 
grant for the Lutz Franklin was given to the township and then money from the grant was taken 
out for legal services, it wouldn’t happen.  That money would come out of the general fund to 
not dilute the grant money fund.  That’s what we are talking about; this is open space money 
that is for acquisition.  It couldn’t be any clearer.  Mr. Maxfield said if anyone that has any 
question, go back and read the actual language, it’s pretty simple and pretty clear.   

ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No) 
 

Mr. Cahalan said the Resolution 65-2007, adoption of the budget, we need to vote on that.  Mrs. 
deLeon said aren’t we going to have any discussion on the budget?  Mr. Cahalan said that’s the 
2008 budget that has been advertised and it’s balanced at $6,091,136.00.  It is before Council for a 
vote tonight for adoption. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for adoption of Resolution 65-2007. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Kern 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  Mrs. deLeon asked 
what we decided with the amusement tax?  Mr. Cahalan said no action was taken.  Mrs. 
deLeon said what about the other items that were possible places to tax people?  Mr. Cahalan 
said they were recommendations for potential sources of revenue made to Council.  You can 
take action on them in 2008 and increase recreation, impose recreation fees on some of the 
recreation programs. Adopt an amusement and fire equipment tax, registration fee on 
businesses, there was a variety of revenue enhancement items we gave you in the budget for 
consideration.  Mrs. deLeon said when you look up the Kingston Park, line item and 
explanation sheet says construction improvements, $50,000, there’s no explanation on what 
that’s going to be?  Mr. Cahalan said we put that together to Council before we had any 
probable cost from the Planner.  Mrs. deLeon said she’d like to see words in there to prioritize 
the garden.  Mr. Maxfield said we didn’t prioritize the garden, we made a motion to include a 
garden. He said he would suggest she go back and read the minutes, it’s pretty clear.  Mrs. 
deLeon wanted to know if we ever heard back from IESI about the Schwartz shop?  Mr. 
Cahalan said he hasn’t heard back from them.  Mr. Horiszny said we made this a resolution, 
not an ordinance.  Mr. Kern said yes, it is 65-2007. 

ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No) 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 5 of 14 

B. ORDINANCE 2007 – 16 – FIXING TAX LEVY FOR 2008 
 

Mr. Kern said Ordinance 2006-16 has been advertised for adoption to fix the 2008 tax levy at 
4.14%.  

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for approval of Ordinance 2007-16 for fixing the tax levy for 2008. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No) 
 

C. RESOLUTION 62-2007 – FIXING EIT, REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX AND GENERAL 
PURPOSE TAX 

 
Mr. Kern said resolution 62-2007 has been prepared setting the Earned Income Tax, the Real Estate 
Transfer Tax and the General Purpose Tax. 

 
Lower Saucon Township 

Resolution #62-2007 
 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 98-15 adopted May 20, 1998, as amended by Ordinance No. 2007-
04 adopted January 2, 2007, the Township of Lower Saucon enacted by Ordinance by its Council 
imposing a one and one-quarter (1 ¼%) percent tax on salaries, wages, commissions, compensation 
and earned income and providing for levying and collection of same and imposing penalties for 
violation thereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 98-16, adopted May 20, 1998, the Township of Lower Saucon 
enacted an Ordinance by its Council providing revenue for general Township purposes, providing 
for the levy and assessment of a tax payable by the transferor or the transferee upon transfer by 
deed of lands, tenements, hereditaments or any interest therein, situate wholly or partly within the 
Township of Lower Saucon, Northampton County, Pennsylvania, prescribing the rate, method and 
manner of collecting said tax; and providing certain exemptions and imposing penalties, at the rate 
of $1.00 on every $100.00 of the total value; and 

 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 70-05, adopted June 23, 1970, as amended by Ordinance No. 
2005-14, adopted December 21, 2005, and as amended by Ordinance No. 2007-15, adopted 
December 5, 2007 the Township of Lower Saucon enacted an Ordinance by its Council imposing a 
$25.00 Local Services Tax formerly known as the Emergency and Municipal Service Tax upon the 
privilege of engaging in an occupation within the boundaries of the Township of Lower Saucon, 
Northampton County, Pennsylvania for, and for providing for the levying and collection of the 
same and imposing penalties for the violation thereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Council of the Township of Lower Saucon to re-enact the said 
Ordinances, as amended, without substantial change. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that in accordance with the foregoing Ordinance No. 
98-15, as amended by Ordinance No. 2007-04; Ordinance No. 98-16; and Ordinance No. 70-05, as 
amended by Ordinance No. 2005-14 and further amended by Ordinance No. 2007-15; and 
Ordinance No. 2006-11, be and the same are hereby re-enacted for the year  2008 to be effective 
January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008 at the same rate as set forth in said Ordinances.  And that 
the Secretary be directed to send notice of the re-enactment to the Department of Community and 
Economic Development, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 6 of 14 

ADOPTED and ENACTED, this 19th day of December, 2007.   
    

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for Resolution 62-2007 for fixing EIT, Real Estate Transfer Tax and 
General Purpose Tax. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No) 
  

D. APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE BIDS FOR POLK VALLEY PARK PHASE I 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Mr. Kern said following Council’s approval of the Polk Valley Park Design Plan, staff would like 
to review the bid advertisement package that Boucher & James has put together for the Phase I 
improvements needed to be put in place to open Polk valley Park in 2008. 

 
Mr. Cahalan said following Council’s approval at the last meeting of the landscape plan Rick 
Trailes presented to us, we put together the Phase I cost.  The opinion of probable cost you should 
have a copy of.  Rick has been working on putting together a bid package so we can get that out 
and get some responses out on the bid advertisement so we can get the improvements for the 
athletic fields in place and the landscaping, fencing and furniture that needs to be in place in order 
for the park to be opened in the spring of 2008. They’d like Council’s approval for advertisement 
of the bid package that is in front of you.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval to advertise bids for Polk Valley Park Phase I improvements. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  Mr. Andrews from 
the Morning Call asked about the Dog Park.  Mr. Tralies said it’s going to be fairly simple.  It’s 
about one acre in size with ¼ acre small dog area, double gated entrance, it will be contained 
with a split rail fence with wire mesh fence.  It will have abundant trees and benches and mutt 
dispensers.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

E. POLK VALLEY PARK/SAUCON VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT CONNECTOR TRAIL – 
REVIEW OF DESIGN 

 
Mr. Kern said Township Planner Rick Tralies from Boucher & James will review with Council the 
design plan for the proposed connector trail between Polk Valley Park and the Saucon Valley 
School District campus. 

 
Mr. Cahalan said this is the linkage between Polk Valley Park and the Saucon Valley School 
District campus.  There was a sidewalk that was on the approved school expansion plan that was to 
run down the west side of Polk Valley Park.  After consideration by Council, it was decided it 
wasn’t the safest route for the children to take to the park.  They’ve been working on an alternative 
that is on the east side of Polk Valley Road which would be a simple trail that would run from the 
campus to the east side of the road, go over a pedestrian footbridge and go to the park.  Mr. Tralies 
said most of what’s on the slide show has been covered when we did the Polk Valley Park 
presentation a couple of weeks ago.  We wanted to provide a safer route for the children coming 
home from school.  They are proposing an 8-10 foot wide pervious path.  They will use a small 
bridge to span the Polk Valley Run, and try to run within the natural features in that area.  He 
explained the paths and roads from the school to the park.  By the barn, that’s where we see 
problems and it’s much thinner in that area, so the area to walk gets much thinner in this area and 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 7 of 14 

it’s the outer edge of the blind curve.  This is the only place you can walk.  After the barn, the right 
of way area opens again until you approach the home and again, leaving not very much room to 
walk there.  As you pass the home, you come into a triangular area, and that’s where they will take 
the trail over Polk Valley Run.  You will then walk along the road again, which is thin.  The 
pinkish stripe is where the sidewalk would go.  The front porch is within 8 feet of the road and the 
front of the house is within 17 feet of the road.  There are some fairly significant obstacles in this 
area where the trail would have to be a little bit thinner.  They need to figure out where to cross 
with regard to soils and slopes and where would be the best place to put a bridge.  Once they get 
across the bridge, they are in the park and can meet up with an existing driveway.  They are 
envisioning a small bridge.  There are some trees, but they are not valuable in this area.  They will 
probably cross to the left of the area.  They can do this without major disturbance and a safe walk 
from the school to Polk Valley Park.  

 
Mr. Cahalan said they walked this many times with the people of the school and they were going to 
bring it to Council to go with the suggested route. Because of that, they felt it would be a good idea 
to hold up on any decision of the trail.  Attorney Treadwell said we will have to do some legal work 
to get that property on the other side of the road as we need to find out how much it will cost, the 
barn, the part that sticks out.  This is the first time he’s seen the porch was an issue.  Mr. Cahalan 
said they thought they could squeeze in front of the porch without any issue.  Mr. Horiszy asked if 
they could go behind the house?  Mr. Tralies said it’s private property and out of the right of way.  
The trail is proposed wholly within the Polk Valley Park right of way.  Mr. Kern said is there a 
necessity in front of the porch and would it have to be paved there and couldn’t we just have a 
natural grass area?  Mrs. deLeon said she wouldn’t want to sit on her porch and look at a macadam 
walk way.  Mr. Tralies said it wouldn’t be that width.  Mrs. deLeon said it wouldn’t matter.  Mr. 
Cahalan said we were also considering some kind of railing on the road side for safety purposes in 
front of the house where it narrowed down.  Mr. Maxfield said in front of the house, the road used 
to come right up to the house, so a path would be a lot less intrusive than a road and since safety is 
the major concern, that’s what we should be thinking of first.  It’s a straight shot down from the 
school.  The original path didn’t include a straight plan, it was kids crossing the road.  He doesn’t 
see an alternative to this.  You could do it without removal of trees and porch, you could do some 
trimming?  Mr. Tralies said they can definitely work around the porch but the trees might be 
another issue depending on where the root systems are.  If you pave a walkway over the root 
system, you are going to impact the tree.  The size of the trees we would be going over the root 
system for sure.  Mrs. deLeon said she’d like to see the properties behind the house.  Mr. Tralies 
said he has no map.  Mrs. Yerger said the kids aren’t going to cut all the way back to the fields, 
they would take a direct route.  George Torella said he’s not here representing the school this 
evening.  Unless it’s been considered, the school district will require the opinion of the insurance 
company who provides the insurance.  Mr. Cahalan said they walked it several times with the 
Superintendent and talked in general about the route, the surface and the fencing, but didn’t get into 
insurance.  Mr. Herman said he owns property there.  Based on lines painted on his property, he 
invites any council members to sit in his driveway and watch the traffic at the intersection at 3:00 
PM or so, and you have a kid who wants to get to the ball field, there’s always four cars at that 
intersection. It really is not a safe place.  When you are sitting at Polk Valley Park, you cannot see 
what is coming around that corner.  He knows people who live there who have almost gotten killed 
from people flying around that corner.  You may need a light there, and it would be safe to cross 
the kids at the four way stop.  You may want to consider going down the west side of the street.  
The cars that come around that corner will tear out the fence you were talking about in a minute.  
The one tree is a white pine, and the other is a chestnut tree which is a very rare tree.  Please try to 
avoid damaging or destroying that tree.  He took some pictures but didn’t bring them today of what 
the traffic looks like at 7:30 AM or 2:30 – 3:00 PM at night.  Mrs. Yerger said one of the things 
around the corner, the line of site is problematic with a light there.  Mr. Kocher said if they don’t 
know a light is there, it is problematic.  The resident said you could have a second signal there with 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 8 of 14 

a red light flashing to let people know there is a light there.  Mr. Kocher said the line of site is not 
going to be there, and it’s pretty extraordinary if PennDOT does let you put a light there.  Mr. 
Maxfield said the first plan for people coming down the west side, they had the people crossing at 
the bridge which we thought was extremely dangerous.  At least up near the school, there’s a four 
way stop there.  We’re doing the best we can.  The idea of a straight shot is important as the kids 
will take the straight shot. The point about the tree is an important thing we need to preserve 
somehow and eliminate the pavement somehow.  We really want the kids to be safe and it’s got to 
be something they use.  If not, they’ll go the unsafe way anyway.  Mrs. Yerger said where the stop 
signs are, you could enlist the aid of a crossing guard there.  She would like to reiterate Mr. 
Torrella’s point about the insurance and we need to investigate it with the school to make sure this 
is an option. Mr. Maxfield said he’d like Brien Kocher to follow up on, is the school zone, 15 MPH 
be put all the way down through the curb and it would be really smart and be stiff enforcement and 
slow people down.  Anything we can do to make it safer, we will do it.    

 
Attorney Treadwell said maybe we can sit down with Mr. Herman and the school district and talk 
about a reasonable way to do it before we get into legal issues.  Mr. Cahalan said Mr. Herman is 
represented by an Attorney.  Mr. Maxfield said we do have the option to sit down and discuss 
options without any Attorney present.  Mr. Tralies said sure he could sit down with them and 
discuss this. 

 
Margie Segaline said if the route the school children would take behind the Herman property 
instead of the front and the entrance to the park was altered, they would then have no choice but to 
take that path, then they wouldn’t be walking along that road, so it would be a matter of shifting the 
entrance.  Mr. Tralies said he knows what she is saying in concept, but doesn’t know how to do it. 
Mr. Maxfield said you are talking about cutting into people’s private property now.  You’d be 
cutting through cornfields and multiple property owners, at least three before you could get to the 
park property.  We are trying to do it an economical way and utilize the whole bridge abutment 
there.  Margie said with the new light going in at Polk Valley Road onto 412, the bridge you are 
talking about would have to be high enough to allow for school buses.   

 
F. REQUEST FROM NORTHAMPTON COUNTY FOR RESPOSITORY SALE OF 

PROPERTY – TEMP R7-17-42 – APPLE PORT ROAD 
 

 Mr. Kern said Northampton County has informed us that this property was not sold at a 1997 
Judicial Sale and is now being held in the County Repository.  The property may be sold from the 
repository but prior to doing so, they must receive written consent from all taxing districts.  They 
have received a bid of $50.00 and after evaluating this bid, they find it to be a fair bid.  Council 
should review and if approved, instruct a letter be sent with our approval of the sale. 

 
 Mr. Cahalan said we gave you all the information we have on that.  We had Cathy look into the tax 

owed and it was minimal.  Mrs. deLeon asked where Apple Port Road is.  Mr. Cahalan said it’s off 
of Springtown Hill Road.  The county is using Apple Port Road.  Attorney Treadwell said it could 
be a paper street.  Mr. Cahalan said we don’t know who is buying it, we only know there’s a $50 
bid for the property.  Attorney Treadwell said it’s not actually on a street, it’s landlocked.  The 
answer is if it was worth something, someone would have bought it at a Sheriff’s sale.  Mr. 
Horiszny said is it a suitable site for a sign to show for some highway somewhere?  Attorney 
Treadwell said no.  It doesn’t have any access to a public street, and that’s why it’s $50. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval to notify the county for the above property, to be sold for $50.  
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 9 of 14 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
Mr. Kern said in an unrelated question regarding streets with Apple in the name, he noticed Apple 
Church Road is Apple’s Church Road on some signs, is it Apple Church Road or Apple’s Church 
Road?  Mr. Cahalan said he will check.  One of them refers to the Church so it could be a plural on 
that.   
 

G. REQUEST COUNCIL DIRECTION REGARDING DISPOSITION OF MARRA 
PROPERTY – QUARRY LANE 

 
Mr. Kern said after determining that the structure of this property was a threat to health and safety, 
the Township took the necessary steps to acquire the property and was given title to the property by 
the current owner for $1.  Following this, on November 14, 2007, the structure was razed by our 
Public Works Department. Staff would now like Council’s direction on what they would like done 
with this property. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said we acquired the deed to it and demolished it about a month ago. We wanted 
direction from Council on what to do with the property.  We are working on a historic plaque.  The 
consultant from Heritage is working on that.  We did recover some historic features.  We recovered 
the corner stone from the building and Dave Kimmerly is working on that with an intern and will 
have a draft of the wording of the plaque.  We need to do an artist rendering of that.  That would be 
placed on the property to indicate the historic significance.  Mrs. Yerger said she was told the 
corner stone is very heavy.  Mr. Horiszny said do we have to have the lot appraised?  Attorney 
Treadwell said if you sell it, but he’d recommend you sit on it until Spring to decide what to do 
with it. 
 

H. INCENTIVES RECOMMENDED BY TOWNSHIP FIREFIGHTERS FOR 
RETENTION/RECRUITMENT 

 
Mr. Kern said the township Fire Chief’s have put together a list of recommended incentives that 
could be provided at the local, county and state levels which they feel will improve the retention of 
their current firefighters and increase the recruitment of new firefighters. 

 
Mr. Kern said Priscilla and Mr. Cahalan met with the Fire Chief’s and Jack prepared some items 
that are recommended incentives.   

 
Mr. Cahalan said he’s worked with this with the Fire Chief’s over the last year.  Some incentives 
are being used by Fire Fighters in the state of PA to enlist volunteers and to keep volunteers they 
currently have. The incentive can range from local incentives like tax exemption for local 
volunteers, or funding for fire fighters activities are translated into points and they accumulate them 
and the end of the period, awards would be made to the fire fighters.  Reimbursement for training 
expenses for travel, meals and lodging.  Wellness activities and health screenings would be done.  
Some additional ones would be flu and hepatitis B vaccinations and fitness equipment.  Provide 
tuition credits at state county colleges.  Waive state vehicle registration fees.  One suggestion was 
to waive membership fees for members at the community pool. Freemansburg Borough does do 
something on a small scale for their fire fighters.  There’s a list of 12 recommendations that the Fire 
Chief’s worked on and the aim would be to provide Council with this list and also to disseminate it 
to our local state legislators and Charlie Dent with the hope that some of these incentives would be 
taken into consideration by the legislative bodies.  Mrs. Yerger said this is great.  Do you need us to 
do anything now?  Mr. Cahalan said it’s just for your consideration. The Fire Chief’s did 
recommend supporting it at the last meeting.  If there’s no problems with it, he will get it 
disseminated and will give copies to the press tonight. It’s just a wish list of items they think would 
help their situation which is a problem with getting volunteers to respond and participate.  Mrs. 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 10 of 14 

Yerger asked how would the allocation of funds go?  Mr. Cahalan said locally it could be waivers 
and exemption from some taxes.  The reimbursement for training expenses is something that could 
be considered during budget discussions.  Tuition, state registration fees would be up to the state 
legislature.  Waiver of fees, community pool fees would have to be done locally.  Mr. Horiszny 
said could the SVP work on that and it would be a pretty easy one?  Mr. Cahalan said they will be 
getting this to the SVP soon.  Mrs. Yerger said if there’s a way we can break it down for training 
for multiple fire companies, that would be great.  Mrs. deLeon said it would be per volunteer.  They 
are having such a hard time to find volunteers.  You have to pay for all of them.  Mrs. Yerger said 
do you want to limit from each fire company and she’d like to hear their recommendations.  Mrs. 
deLeon said that wouldn’t be fair and we want to get as many volunteers as we can possibly can or 
we’ll have to pay for professional fire fighters and it will cost us a lot more money.  Mr. Maxfield 
said a lot of our fire fighters come from other municipalities so the state and county incentives are 
really interesting and we could lend our support to that.  He’d like to do some family friendly 
things like waiving membership fees and think of some other family programs that the family could 
benefit from.  Most of the guys have family members.  Mr. Horiszny said state and federal 
incentive bills are still open and we could write a letter of support to our legislators.  This would go 
for Fire Police also, Mr. Maxfield said.  Mr. Kern said because it’s such a crunch as finding 
volunteers, the maximum impact and benefit we could give to a volunteer fire fighter in addition to 
local real estate tax, but also the school real estate tax.  What better way to get someone’s attention 
that say we’ll look into saving thousands of dollars, so he’d like to see this on the list.  Attorney 
Treadwell said you can’t do this, the school district has to do this.  Mrs. deLeon said there would be 
strict criteria they have to follow then.  Mr. Cahalan said he believes we have 50 to 100 volunteers 
now and the availability is the number one problem.  Mrs. Yerger said shouldn’t we wait for the 
SVP to write the letters?  Mr. Horiszny said we can do that on our own.  Mrs. deLeon said we are 
going to be meeting with the fire departments in January.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to write a letter to our representatives about the incentives recommended 

by township fire fighters for recruitment and retention. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
I. DISCUSSION OF CITY OF BETHLEHEM FIRE HYDRANTS LOCATED IN TOWNSHIP 

 
Mr. Kern said the township Fire Chief’s have brought to our attention that the 76 fire hydrants 
owned by the City of Bethlehem in Lower Saucon Township are not being properly maintained and 
do not have quick connect adapters or locater whips installed on them. 

 
Mr. Cahalan said this was discussed at the recent Fire Chief’s meeting. There is a map to show you 
where they are located.  The Fire Chief’s are concerned about the quick connect adapters and the 
whips, but they also don’t have the location on the GIS maps and it is not available at this point. 
The Fire Companies in this township do know where Hellertown Borough and the Township 
hydrants are when they go to a fire.  We are trying to get the location of the City of Bethlehem 
hydrants and get it to the County 911 center.  We asked back in 2005 that the hydrants didn’t have 
the adapters and we didn’t get any response, so we’re bringing that back to Council. The additional 
concern is that the hydrants are not being properly maintained by the City.   

 
Mrs. deLeon said a letter went out in 2005 and they never answered us, so we need to get on top of 
this and send a letter to the city and keep an eye on it if they don’t respond to it in a timely manner.  
Mr. Cahalan said we may want to direct it to the City Council President.  Mrs. deLeon said keep 
tabs on it in 30 to 60 days.  Mr. Cahalan said if he can get more information on the maintenance 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 11 of 14 

issues, then he’ll get the letter off to the City of Bethlehem.  Mr. Dan Andrews asked how many 
fire hydrants were affected?  Mr. Cahalan said there are 338 fire hydrants in the Township, 76 
belong to the City of Bethlehem, 16 to Hellertown Borough and 3 to IESI Landfill.  The rest belong 
to Lower Saucon Authority.   
 

J. CENTER FOR ANIMAL HEALTH AND SAFETY – AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF 2008 
AGREEMENT 

 
Mr. Kern said the Township Manager will review the proposed 2008 Agreement with the Center 
for Animal Health and Safety for animal services for stray, abused, injured animals for 2008 and is 
requesting Council’s approval of the Agreement. 

 
Mr. Cahalan said two issues, they gave us the contract at the last minute.  We have had contracts 
with them that came out a little bit earlier, and they raised the fee from $10 to $50 an animal. We 
had previously gone over the issue of feral cats.  We are just picking up stray dogs at this point.  
There are one or two cats that the police will do a call on and have them picked up, but it is more 
stray dogs.  The contract needs Council’s approval for 2008 for stray animal services.  Mr. 
Maxfield asked can citizens bring an animal to the shelter and is the township is responsible for the 
fee of $50.  Mr. Cahalan said according to our policy, the center cannot bill the township for any 
animal that is brought there by a citizen, it has to be by a police officer only. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval to authorize execution of the 2008 agreement. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon  

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 5,  2007 COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
 

Mr. Kern said the minutes of the December 5, 2007 minutes have been prepared and are ready for 
Council’s approval. 

 
Mr. Horiszny said page 1, line 34, we need to clarify Vanessa’s title.  Mr. Cahalan said the correct 
terminology is Jr. Council person, as it’s the Jr. Council program.  Mrs. deLeon said we had such 
candidates, we would utilize them and it’s under the Jr. Council program, but it would be the Jr. 
Council representative to the Planning Commission as we’re appointing them to be on that board.  
Page 14, line 38, the first word “strong” should be “straw” pole.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval of the December 5, 2007 minutes with corrections. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mr. Horiszny – No) 
 

B. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 2007  FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Mr. Kern said the November 2007 financial reports have been prepared and are ready for Council’s 
review and approval. 

 
 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 12 of 14 

MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for approval of the November 2007 financial reports. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT / CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 Nothing 
 
VIII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 
 Mr. Cahalan said we received a request from Ashley Development for the extension of 

time to complete conditions of approval for Churchill Estates subdivision.  It expires 
December 21, 2007 and they want an extension until June 21, 2008 to complete conditions 
of approval.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for the request from Ashley Development for extension of time to June 

21, 2008. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Kern 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

 He gave you a copy of an email from Mrs. Patricia Manbeck from the Clover View 
subdivision.  They reported previously the Elliot Building Group has filed for bankruptcy. 
This subdivision is approved for 15 lots but only two houses have been built.  Mrs. 
Manbeck emailed and said she’s concerned there will be no snow plowing on Maccarro 
Way this winter.  She’s been in touch with the attorney for the Elliot Building Group and 
they do not have funds to plow the road.  Road emergency vehicles could not get down the 
road and her husband has health issues, postal service could not get down the road.  In a 
previous situation where the developer was unable to complete the subdivision and the 
residents were at the mercy of the elements, the Council did request that Public Works 
plow the road and bill the developer.  Attorney Treadwell said we have to plow and try to 
recover the money.  They are in bankruptcy, whether he can get the money out of the 
escrow, we have to keep the residents safe.  He will do anything he can to file liens against 
the empty lots.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved to direct the Manager to have the Public Works Department to plow the road 

in the Cloverview Development. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

 Several months ago there was a report from Mr. Mark Wirth and Mike Stern about tree 
removal on the Slater property on 378, they indicated there was disturbance in the wetlands 
area.  Chris Garges said the only disturbance he saw that Mr. Warner did fill in a sinkhole 
on the property near Black River Road and it was done correctly and with township 
approval and only two trees in 8” diameter were cut down and one was in a sinkhole and 
was not in violation of the woodland protection ration.  Regarding the observance in the 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 13 of 14 

wetlands area, Chris retained a report of the wetlands report and there is a pocket of 
wetlands in the south end of the property and the zoning officer did not see any evidence of 
any disturbance in that area of the wetlands.  Mrs. deLeon said did anybody tell Mr. Wirth?  
Mr. Cahalan said they did not officially go back to him, but he will pass the information on 
to the EAC and send it to Mr. Wirth and Mike Stern.   

 He wanted to update the meeting to discuss the regional police report.  It’s at DCED and 
Ron Stern has asked to meet with the combined council’s, the two police chief’s on 
Monday, January 14, 2008 at 6 PM.  He polled the chief and Council and it appears that 
every one can make it except one person.  It’s okay with Hellertown Borough Council.  
Mrs. deLeon asked if it was an open meeting.  Mr. Cahalan said it’s just between the Police 
Chief’s.  Attorney Treadwell said he is fine with that.  He will talk to the Hellertown 
Solicitor.   

 
 

Georgiana Torella left the meeting. The time was 9:16 PM. 
 

 
B. TOWNSHIP COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL MEMBER 
 

Mrs. Yerger 
 The January 8 EAC meeting will have a representative from Bushkill County, Jason Smith, 

to talk about the benefits of an official map.  It can be a helpful tool. 
 

Mr. Maxfield 
 Nothing to report 
 

Mr. Kern 
 There were four major trees cut down on Old Mill Road in the Township right of way that 

were Township trees.  The property owner cut them down.  It’s the new house going up 
right on Old Mill Road in the new subdivision.  Mr. Tralies said Chris Garges had 
mentioned this and he’s in contact with the architect and he basically said they removed the 
trees in order to regrade the front part of the lot to improve their re-visibility of the front of 
the driveway and will put new trees there.  Chris did seem to think they were right on the 
right of way line. Mr. Tralies is still checking into this and will talk to Chris again about it. 

 
Mrs. deLeon 

 The SV Conservancy annual holiday gathering was postponed because of the snow, and 
they had it on Monday night and it was a great turn out and people had a really nice time 
and she thanks everyone. 

 She said she had conversations with Attorney Treadwell over whether it would be she 
could be a Council member and also an officer in a non profit group, and if it would be a 
conflict.  There was a letter to the editor in a recent paper about this.  Could you please 
answer this question?  Attorney Treadwell said we have had this discussion before and it is 
not a conflict. 

 
Mr. Horiszny 

 He attended the most recent SVP meeting. He attended LSA meeting last night and he had 
called Jack about a question regarding the sign by the Heller Homestead, by the small strip 
shop, and it was taken down and now a big new one was put up.  Mr. Cahalan said Chris 
Garges will have to look at it.   

 
C. SOLICITOR 



General Business Meeting 
December 19, 2007 
 

Page 14 of 14 

 Nothing to report 
D. ENGINEER 

 Nothing to report 
 
E. PLANNER 

 Nothing to report.      
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to adjourn.  The time was 9:31 PM. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
___________________________________   __________________________________ 
Mr. Jack Cahalan      Glenn Kern     
Township Manager      President of Council 

 


